
AB
LICENSING COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 3 SEPTEMBER 2015
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on:

3.1 18 June 2015 3 - 6

3.2 Minutes of the Sub-Committee Hearings Held Between June 
2015 and July 2015

7 - 24

i) 11/06/15 – Madina Kebab, 2 – 65 Gladstone Street (Review) 
and Nectar, 1 – 2 Central Square (New Premises)

ii) 09/07/15 – Baltia, 148 – 150 Huntly Grove (Review)

4. Field Walk Appeal 25 - 70

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recordi
ng.pdf

Public Document Pack

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

Committee Members:

Councillors: P Thacker (Chairman), P Hiller (Vice Chairman), Coles, A Iqbal, G Nawaz, S Martin, 
N Shabbir, A Miners, R Herdman and Davidson

Substitutes: Councillors: G Casey, M Jamil, B Saltmarsh, F Fox and A Shaheed

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk



AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 18 JUNE 2015

Members Present: Councillors Hiller (Chair), Coles, Iqbal, Miners, Herdman and Forbes

Officers Present: Peter Gell, Head of Regulatory Services
Donna Hall, Public Protection Manager
Terri Martin, Regulatory Officer
Kerry Leishman, Licensing Development Officer
Colin Miles, Litigation Lawyer
Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Thacker, Davidson and 
Martin. Councillor Forbes was in attendance as a substitute.

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on:

3.1 18 December 2014

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 were approved as a true and 
accurate record.

3.2 Minutes of the Sub-Committee Hearings Held Between December 2014 and 
May 2015

The following minutes of the Sub-Committee hearings held between December 2014 
and May 2015 were approved as true and accurate records:

i) 11/12/14 – 653 Lincoln Road (Review)
ii) 13/01/15 – Little Europe (New Premises)
iii) 01/04/15 – Rylass (New Premises)
iv) 13/04/15 – Anglia Ruskin University Higher Education Corporation 

(New Premises)
v) 15/05/15 – Coop, Oundle Road (New Premises)

It was agreed that the ‘Review of Statement of Principles – Gambling Act 2005’ 
would be considered by the Committee as the first item.

4. Review of Statement of Principles – Gambling Act 2005

The Committee received a report which outlined the draft revised Statement of 
Principles prepared in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005, for the purposes of 
statutory consultation. The report further sought the Committee’s approval of the 
draft revised Statement of Principles.

3



The Licensing Development Officer presented the report and made the following key 
points:

 There were no changes proposed that were required to be reflected in 
Council policy.

 The most prominent revision was that the Statement of Principles must be 
reviewed every three years, rather than every five years. This was introduced 
under the Gambling Act 2015, without discretion.

The Committee noted that the proposed consultation period would run for a 
considerable period and was advised that notices would be displayed in Council 
offices and on the Council’s website.

RESOLVED that:

i) The draft revised Statement of Principles for the purposes of consultation 
between 6 July and 13 September 2015 be approved; and

ii) The Proposal for consultation of the draft revised Statement of Principles be 
approved, in accordance with section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005.

5. Proposed Variation of Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Requirements

The Committee received a report following a referral from the Licensing Department, 
which sought approval to vary the private hire vehicle requirements to for the 
provision of new technologies.

The Public Protection Manager presented the report and made the following key 
points:

 Currently the Council was not able to licence other means of vehicle which 
were not measured by cubic capacity engine use.

 The Council had been approached by an operator wishing to use an electric 
vehicle as a private hire vehicle. 

 It was believed that varying the private hire vehicle licensing requirements to 
support such an approach would support the Council’s Environment Capital 
aims.

 No comments had been received during the consultation period.

In response to a question from the Committee, the Public Protection Manager 
advised that it was not considered that the removal of the minimum 1300 cubic 
capacity requirement would encourage 1000 cubic capacity engine use.

RESOLVED that requirement 1(c) “The cubic capacity of the engine is no less than 
1300cc, unless the vehicle in question is a diesel “Fortwo” Smart Car” be removed 
from the private hire vehicle requirements.

6. Three Year Taxi Private Hire Driver Licensing

The Committee received a report following a referral from the Licensing Department, 
which sought for the adoption of a three year Taxi and Private Hire driver licence 
following the implementation of the Deregulation Act 2015. The report further sought 
approval from the Committee on the frequency of associated driver safety checks.

The Public Protection Manager presented the report and made the following key 
points:

 The current Taxi and Private Hire driver licence was subject to an annual 
renewal. There was now no legal requirement for an annual renewal, as such 
a three year licence period was proposed. 

4



 Alongside the annual licence renewals, driver safety checks were 
undertaken. A decision needed to be made as to whether these checks would 
remain annual, or also be altered to a three year cycle.

 Option one, to introduce a three year renewal process for licensed drivers 
and associated driver safety checks, reduced the burden on officers and 
licence holders. There was a risk involved that licence holders would not 
notify the Council of any relevant convictions. 

 Option two, to introduce a three year renewal process for licensed drivers, 
however retain annual driver safety checks, would reduce the burden on 
officers to a degree and maintain safety checks.

 Current fees for annual renewal were £114. Option one would amount to 
approximately £245 for three years. Option two would cost approximately 
£285 for three years. Additional fees would be incurred in relation to the 
police, Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency (DVLA) and Disclosure and 
Barring Service (DBS) checks. 

The Committee discussed the ramifications of both proposed options. It was 
confirmed that the police were under an obligation to inform the Council if a private 
hire licence holder was convicted of an offence. In response to a questions for the 
Committee the Public Protection Manager clarified that if drivers signed up to DBS 
Update, checks would be undertaken by more regularly through the DBS, which 
could be used in the audit process.

The Head of Regulatory Services explained that the powers of the Licensing 
Authority to review and suspend licences would remain. It was further advised that a 
reduction in the administrative requirements on officers would free up resources to 
undertake more compliance and audit checks.

RESOLVED that:

i) The new information in relation to the Deregulation Act 2015 be noted; and

ii) A three year renewal process for licensed drivers and associated driver 
safety checks be adopted.

7. Review of Statement of Licensing Policy – Licensing Act 2003

The Committee received a report, which outlined the draft revised Statement of 
Licensing Policy prepared in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, for the 
purposes of statutory consultation. The report further sought the Committee’s 
approval of the draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy.

The Regulatory Officer presented the report and made the following key points:
 The Statement of Licensing Policy was required by statute.
 There had been a number of amendments to relevant laws following the most 

recent review of the document. 
 The review period had been amended to a five year period. 
 Two new responsible authorities had been identified in the form of the 

Licensing Authority and Public Health. 
 Changes had been made to the Temporary Event Notice regulations. Two 

relevant persons had been identified; Pollution Control and the Police.
 The Council now had the power to suspend a premises licence if the annual 

fee was not paid. 
 A personal licence was now indefinite. 
 There had been a deregulation of entertainment uses. 

5



RESOLVED that the commencement of the consultation on the Statement of 
Licensing Policy, from 6 July 2015 for a period of ten weeks ending 13 September 
2015, be approved.

Chairman
7.05pm – 7:36pm

6



AB
Meeting of the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 

held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on Thursday, 11 June 2015

RECORD OF DECISION

Appointment of Chairman Nominations were received for Councillor Davidson as Chairman.  Following 
nominations, Councillor Davidson was appointed as Chairman for this 
hearing.

1. Apologies for Absence There were no apologies for absence received.

2. Declarations of Interest There were no declarations of interest.

3. Application Review of Premises Licence – Madina Kebab House – 65 Gladstone Street, 
Millfield, Peterborough, PE1 2BN

3.1 Application Reference MAU:  071291

3.2 Sub-Committee Members Councillor Davidson (Chairman) 
Councillor Shabbir
Councillor Coles

3.3 Officers Darren Dolby, Regulatory Officer – Licensing
Colin Miles , Lawyer – Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee
Karen S Dunleavy, Governance Officer – Clerk to the Sub-Committee 

3.4 Applicant Cambridgeshire Constabulary 

3.5 Nature of Application Application Type

Review of Premises Licence.

Summary of Review Application

In accordance with section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, following the 
submission of an application to review the premises licence from 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary, a Responsible Authority, the licensing 
authority was required to hold a hearing.

The application to review, served by Cambridgeshire Constabulary, was 
received on 23 April 2015.

A representation in support of the review and recommendations had been 
received from the Licensing Authority.  Additional representations in support 
of the review had also been received from Safer Peterborough Partnership, 
supplementary information in the form of a witness statement from the police 
and Immigration Enforcement.

Representations were received from other persons in writing in the form of 
two petitions, one with 17 names and one with 20 names.

7



A summary of the issues raised within the representations included:

 Breach of Crime and disorder objective for employing illegal workers 
at the premises;

 Section 11.27 and 11.28 of Guidance recommends revocation where 
the objectives are undermined through the premises being used to 
further crimes;

 Illegal working had harmful social and economic effects in the UK, 
exploiting migrant workers and undercutting other businesses 
operating within the law;

 Questioning the management’s ability to promote the licensing 
objectives;

 Complaints from residents received alleging trading past authorised 
hours and unreasonable disturbance caused by the premises;

 Allegations of anti-social behaviour, drug problems, litter, noise 
disturbance causing sleep deprivation, all associated with the 
premises and its patrons; and

 Operating too late for a residential area.

3.6 Licensing Objective(s) 
under which 
representations were 
made

3.7 1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

3.7 Parties/Representatives 
and witnesses present

Applicant / Responsible Authority

PC Robinson, who presented the case on behalf of Cambridgeshire 
Constabulary.

Responsible Authorities

Donna Hall, who was present on behalf of the Licensing Authority.

Other Persons

Patrick Rush,  who was present on behalf of Immigration Enforcement.

Gulshad Khan, who was present as other persons.  Gulshad Khan was also 
present on behalf of Butal Rafique.

Licensee / Representative

Mr Hussain, the Licensee was not in attendance.  There was no 
representative in attendance on behalf of Mr Hussain. 

3.8 Pre-hearing considerations 
and any decisions taken by 
the Sub-Committee relating 
to ancillary matters

The Sub-Committee, agreed to permit the submission of a letter and petition 
from the Licence Holder as supplementary information. 

8



3.9   Oral representations The Regulatory Officer addressed the Sub-Committee and outlined the main 
points with regards to the application.

Applicant / Responsible Authority

PC Robinson addressed the Sub-Committee. The key points raised during 
his address, and following questions from the Sub-Committee were as 
follows:

 There had been a breach to the licensing objectives crime and 
disorder for employing people that were not entitled to work in the Uk;

 The police executed a warrant following the inspection by Imigration 
which had resulted in the arrests of four people;

 The four persons arrested had since been exported;
 A fine had been submitted to the license holder for the employment of 

immigrant workers;
 There were drug activities in the area, however, the activity could not 

be solely attributed to the Madina restaurant;
 The police had liaised with licensing in regards to reported noise 

disturbances; and
 Requests had been made to the premises to ensure that their CCTV 

was in good working order.

Responsible Authority – Licensing Authority

The Public Protection Manager addressed the Sub-Committee. The key 
points raised during her address, and following questions from the Sub-
Committee, were as follows:

 A number of concerns in regards to the management of premises in 
order to up hold the licence objectives had been raised with the team; 
and

 A review application had been made by the police.

Other Persons – Patrick Rush,  who was present on behalf of Immigration 
Enforcement

Patrick Rush addressed the Sub-Committee. The key points raised during his 
address, and following questions from the Sub-Committee, were as follows:

 Immigration had visited the Madina Kebab house following reports of 
community tensions;

 Threats were made by Madina staff towards the agency officers 
during a first visit which lead to the officers withdrawal of from 
premises;

 At the time of the first visit there had been seven people suspected to 
be immigrant workers at the Madina premises;

 The seven people identified were cross referenced by use of the 
immigration database, which identified 4 illegal immigrants; 

 A further visit to the premises was made, which ws supported by the 
Licensing Team on 13 March 2015;

 The 13 March 2015 visit made by immigration and the Licensing 
Team found that there were Pakistan nationals at the Madina 
premises that were not entitled to work in the United Kingdom;

9



 The owner could not provide paperwork accompanied with 
photographic evidence for the British national workers; and

 A referral noticed with a potential fine of up to £80,000 was issued to 
the premises owner for non-compliance of being able to produce 
documentation and for the illegal migrant workers identified.

Other Persons – Gulshad Khan, Local Resident

Mrs Gulshad Khan addressed the Sub-Committee. The key points raised 
during her address, and following questions from the Sub-Committee, were 
as follows:

 Mrs Gulshad Khan lived next door to the Madina takeaway and had 
experienced significant disturbance to the family, in that her five 
children were subjected to regular patterns of broken sleep as a result 
of the noise omitting from and around the Madina takeaway;

 The disturbances had been reported to the police, which had resulted 
in warnings issued to the premises;

 People had frequented the area from around 1 to 1:30am, which 
surrounded the Madina premises;

 The noise disturbance experienced had also included moving 
furniture in the Madina kitchen and arguments between staff, which 
could be heard for a period of time after 10pm;

 The owner Mr Hussain had been contacted by neighbouring residents 
on various occasions to talk through and resolve the issues being 
experienced, however, in response, Mr Hussain would be rude and 
would antagonise the neighbours further by turning up music;

 Following the residents attempts to approach the Madina owner Mr 
Hussain in order to discuss the issues being experienced, their cars 
would be found damaged the following day;

 Other concerns raised with the premises owner (Madina) was with 
regard to vehicle horns sounding directly outside Mrs Gulshad’s 
house; and

 Residents of the area would like the premises not to operate so late.

Summing Up

All parties were given the opportunity to summarise their submissions and 
there were no further comments made by any party. 

3.10   Written representations  
and    supplementary 
material taken into 
consideration 

Applicant / Responsible Authority – Cambridgeshire Police

Consideration was given to the application submitted by Cambridgeshire 
Police and attached to the Sub-Committee report. 

Responsible Authorities

Consideration was given to the written submissions attached to the Sub-
Committee report from the Licensing Authority.

Other Persons

Consideration was given to the written submissions attached to the Sub-
Committee report from Immigration Enforcement, witness statement from 

10



Police Sergeant Pryke on behalf of Op Can Do, Mr Shariq Khan, Mrs 
Gulshad Khan and two petitions which contained 37 signatures.

Licensee

Consideration was given to the supplementary information submitted on the 
day of the hearing and attached at appendix 1.

3.11   Facts/Issues in dispute Issue 1

Whether the review application would further support the ‘Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder’ Licensing Objective.

3.11   4. Decision The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence put before it and also 
took into account the contents of the application and all 
representations and submissions made in relation to it.  The Sub-
Committee found as follows:-

The Sub-Committee considered the representations made and in writing 
from:

 Immigration Enforcement;
 Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority; and
 Other persons, especially residents who attended and spoke clearly 

and credibly about the problems they are experiencing.

Immigration Enforcement Officer Mr Patrick Rush told the Committee that on 
13th March 2015 in a joint operation with the Police, he attended the 
premises and found that there were four illegal migrants who were working at 
the premises unlawfully. The licence holder was invited to attend but 
declined.

A previous visit by Immigration Enforcement Officers on 17 December 2014 
was abandoned due to threats of violence made by persons unknown at the 
premises. Before officers left the premises they were able to establish that up 
to seven workers were illegal migrants who were working unlawfully.

Mr Rush informed the Committee that such workers were exploited by their 
employers and often were not paid the minimum wage. This allowed an 
unfair advantage over legitimate traders. HMRC were unable to collect 
revenue from such operations thus depriving the public purse of legitimate 
taxation. Also, there was little compliance to health and safety regulation.

In the statement of Police Sergeant K Pryke, he stated that the premises was 
located in the heart of a residential area and the premises was associated 
with anti-social behaviour late at night. Youths tended to gather around the 
premises adding to noise nuisance and disturbance to residents.  In his 
opinion, residents felt intimated by these groups.

The Public Protection Manager of Peterborough City Council informed the 
Sub-Committee that the premises often traded previously after 11pm without 
being licensed. There is an allegation of selling hot food at 3am. On being 
licensed, the premises continued to trade past its licensable hour of 1am.

11



On 19th March 2015, the Food Safety Team attended the premises for a 
routine inspection. They found little evidence of food safety compliance and 
no documented food hygiene safety system.

Also, there had been a pattern of non-compliance with legal requirements 
and poor management practices.

Safer Peterborough Partnership supported the review but did not expand 
further. 

Local residents informed the Committee that there has been a history of 
noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and intimidation. Cars arrived late at 
night, often with loud music coming from within, groups of young men 
gathered around the premises making noise, and vehicles in the immediate 
vicinity had been damaged. Many residents were fearful when it came to 
complaining. 

A petition was included in the review documents signed by some thirty seven 
residents also complaining of noise disturbance and other anti-social 
behaviour.

The licence holder, Mr A Hussain, did not attend the hearing but did submit a 
statement and a petition signed by some seventy four people in support of 
his business. Although the petition was presented beyond the end of the 
period for making representations, the Sub-Committee agreed to consider it 
as supporting information on behalf of the licence holder in the interests of 
fairness.

Mr Hussain stated in his statement that the employment of four illegal 
workers was an oversight and he should have been more vigilant.

He also stated that he was also a victim and has been verbally abused. He 
denied the allegations of the residents, he stated that he was complying, or 
at least attempting to, with his licence conditions and other regulations.

He made no mention of the previous visit to his premises made by 
immigration Enforcement Officers in December 2014.

In its deliberations, the Sub Committee gave consideration to the facts 
submitted, those being:

 Breach of Crime and disorder objective for employing illegal workers 
at the premises;

 Previous history of illegal workers at the premises;
 Section 11.27 and 11.28 of Guidance recommended revocation 

where the objectives were undermined through the premises being 
used to further crimes;

 Illegal working has harmful social and economic effects in the UK, 
exploiting migrant workers and undercutting other businesses 
operating within the law;

 Questioning the management’s ability to promote the objectives;
 The complaints from residents received alleged trading past 

authorised hours and unreasonable disturbance caused by the 
premises; and

12



 Allegations of anti-social behaviour, litter, noise disturbance causing 
sleep deprivation, all associated with the premises and its patrons.

The Sub Committee considered the licence holder’s supporting statement 
and the attached petition (Appendix 1). On balance, the Sub-Committee 
attached more credibility to the evidence of the Responsible Authorities and 
residents.

The Sub-Committee noted that revocation was recommended by officers. 
The Sub-Committee attached significant weight to the representations of the 
Police and other Responsible Authorities, and to the residents.

The Sub-Committee concluded that within the community this premises was 
problematic.

The Sub Committee considered such steps as appropriate to promote the 
licensing objectives. The steps were: 

 to modify the conditions of the premises licence;
 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; or 
 to revoke the licence.

The Sub-Committee’s decision was to revoke the licence in its entirety for the 
premises, known as Madina Kebab House – 65 Gladstone Street, Millfield, 
Peterborough, PE1 2BN.

The Sub-Committee did not consider that additional conditions or 
modification of existing conditions would resolve the issues at the premises, 
nor would any period of suspension. Due to the history of non-compliance 
and the failure to abide by statutory provisions associated with premises, the 
Sub-Committee did not believe that the business was being run properly or 
responsibly, and it had been more likely than not, based on the facts and 
submissions before the Sub-Committee, that the premises under the current 
management would continue to be problematic.

The Sub-Committee adjourned at 11:40am for 20 minutes to allow the 
applicant and representatives to be present for the next hearing.

3.11 5. Application New Premises Licence – Nectar Stanground, 2 Central Square, Stanground, 
Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE2 8RH

5.1       Application Reference
3.11

071225

5.2      Sub-Committee Members Councillor Davidson (Chairman) 
Councillor Coles
Councillor Shabbir

5.3      Officers Darren Dolby, Regulatory Officer – Licensing
Colin Miles, Lawyer – Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee
Karen S Dunleavy Democratic Services Officer – Clerk to the Sub-Committee 

5.4      Applicant Polish Deli Peterborough Ltd 

13



5.5      Nature of Application Application Type

Application for a new premises licence.

Authorisations and Times Applied For

 Sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises

Monday to Saturday 09.00 to 22.00
Sunday  10.00 to 22.00

 Hours premises are open to the public

Monday to Saturday 09.00 to 22.00
Sunday  10.00 to 20.00

Summary of New Premises Licence Application

In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, following the submission of an 
application for a new premises licence for Nectar Stanground, 2 Central 
Square, Stanground, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire, PE2 8RH, which had 
attracted representations in objection to the application, the Licensing 
Authority was required to hold a hearing.

A summary of the issues raised within the representations included:

 It was felt by residents that there were already sufficient premises in 
the area where alcohol could be purchased;

 The premises was on a school route which could lead to an increase 
in underage consumption of alcohol; and

 The premises would be detrimental to the visual appearance of the 
area.

5.6      Licensing Objective(s)       
under which representations were 
made

3.8 1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
3.9 2. The Protection of Children from Harm

3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance
4. The Protection of Public Safety

5.7      Parties/Representatives 
and witnesses present

The Licensing Authority

The Licensing Officer, who presented the case on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority. 

Applicant

Mr Yuriy Zhuravel, the Applicant, and Mr Robin Howard, the Applicant’s 
Representative. 

3.10
5.8      Pre-hearing considerations 
and any decisions taken by the 
Sub-Committee relating to 
ancillary matters

There were no pre-hearing considerations.

14



  5.9      Oral representations The Regulatory Officer addressed the Sub-Committee and outlined the main 
points in regards to the application.  The key points raised in his address 
included:

Applicant/Representative

Mr Howard, the applicant’s representative, addressed the Sub-Committee. 
The key points raised during his address, and following questions from the 
Sub-Committee were as follows:

 A plan of the building was distributed to the Sub-Committee, which 
demonstrated how the premises would be set out to resemble a small 
supermarket;

 There would be a large amount of CCTV surveillance cameras placed 
in strategic places throughout the premises to deter crime;

 The beer and wines would be refrigerated, with spirits located behind 
a counter;

 The applicant wished to include the sale of alcohol within the times 
stated with reduced times offered on the weekends;

 The premises would have a similar set up to the premises already in 
operation by the applicant on Bourges Boulevard and in Huntingdon;

 There had been no operational issues raised or reported to the 
authorities in respect of the Bourges Boulevard and Huntingdon 
premises;

 A book would be kept to record circumstances where the sale of 
alcohol to customers had been refused;

 The applicant was aware of the main points made within the 
representations against granting the licence, and noted that the 
information provided had not been a licensing consideration;

 It would be a rebuttable presumption that the premises would impact 
on the area even if a saturation policy was in place;

 Central Square was located near bus stops and schools, where a 
Tesco’s store had also operated;

 Alcohol would not be sold to young people under the permitted age 
and if they persisted in their attempts, they would be refused entry to 
the shop;

 The shop would run short operating hours in comparison to most 
premises;

 The petitions signed by local residents did not align in with the four 
licensing objectives;

 There would be a varied amount of products in sale at the premises; 
however there was no intention to sell cheap alcohol;  

 The premises staff would regularly inspect and clean any rubbish 
from around the shop;

 Only fully trained staff would be permitted to sell alcohol.  Any new 
staff would also be trained in the sale of alcohol;

 A training record would be kept on;
 There would be no sales of promotional packs of beer and it was 

envisaged that the average abv would not exceed 5%.

Other Persons – Mr Colin Blackman

Mr Colin Blackman, addressed the Sub-Committee. The key points raised 
during his address, and following questions from the Sub-Committee were as 

15



follows:

 Mr Blackman had signed the petition over a month ago; 
 There was no objection to the premises selling a wide range of 

delicacies; 
 There was a pub located near the premises, namely, ‘The Whistle’, 

which sold alcohol all day;
 There had been objection made towards another establishment 

selling alcohol in the area due to the fact that a Tesco’s was located 
on the main road and a garage was located on Lawson Avenue that 
already sold alcohol;

 Residents did not want the sale of alcohol located so near to a 
school;

 A concern was raised that Central Avenue Stanground, may become 
saturated with establishments such as in the Millfield area of 
Peterborough, if the Sub-Committee was minded to grant the 
premises licence;

 There had already been an issue with litter in the area;
 There was a concern that people would frequent the area after 10pm 

as a result of the sale of alcohol;
 There was a strong feeling that the premises should only be permitted 

to sell food; and
 There were 72 petitioners against the application.

Summing Up

All parties were given the opportunity to summarise their submissions and 
there were no further comments made by any party. 

5.10      Written representations  
and    supplementary material 
taken into consideration 

Applicant 

Consideration was given to the application for a Premises Licence, attached 
to the Sub-Committee report. 

Responsible Authorities

Consideration was given to the written submission attached to the Sub-
Committee report from four Responsible Authorities.

Other Persons

Consideration was given to the representation made in the form of a petition 
from some 72 residents.

  5.11      Facts/Issues in dispute Issue 1

Whether the premises licence application would further support the 
‘Protection of Children from Harm’ Licensing Objective.

  6. Decision The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence put before it and also 
took into account the contents of the application and all 
representations and submissions made in relation to it.  The Sub-
Committee found as follows:-

16



The Sub-Committee considered the petition in objection to the grant of a 
premises licence. Residents appeared to be concerned about the number of 
licensed premises in the area and the risk of underage alcohol sales.

One resident attended and spoke of the risk of underage sales and that there 
were sufficient outlets to purchase alcohol.

The Applicant’s representative informed the Committee that the premises 
went beyond a shop, it was a supermarket with strict controls, a “Challenge 
25” policy and a very robust CCTV system. The Applicant operated another 
supermarket in Peterborough and there had been no complaints from the 
Police. 

The Committee considered the representations made today against the 
application.  A summary of the issues raised included:

 Already sufficient premises in the area where alcohol can be 
purchased;

 Premises was on a school route which could lead to an increase in 
underage consumption of alcohol; and

 Detrimental to the visual appearance of the area.

The Sub-Committee had taken account of the Government Guidance and the 
Council’s own Licensing Policy. The Committee accepted that there was a 
presumption to grant unless there were sound reasons backed by evidence 
to rebut this presumption.

The Sub-Committee believed that the Applicant’s operating schedule was 
sufficiently robust to meet residents’ concerns.

The Applicant operated another similar premises. There were no objections 
from any Responsible Authorities. The Applicant intended to operate a 
“challenge 25” initiative.

The Sub-Committee disregarded irrelevant considerations such as “need” 
and “saturation” in this case.

The Sub-Committee also gave consideration to the various options in order 
to promote the licensing objective as follows:

 Decide to grant the licence in the same terms as it was applied for;
 Decide to grant the licence, but to modify or add conditions (to 

promote the licensing objectives);
 Exclude from the scope of the licence a licensable activity, where 

there are more than one licensable activity and as appropriate; and
 Decide to refuse to grant the licence.

The Sub-Committee therefore granted the application for the premises 
licence as applied for.

The Sub-Committee advised that any party in objection to the decision could 
appeal to the Peterborough Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving the 
formal decision notice.

17



Chairman
Start 10:30 am–Finish 1:07pm

18



AB
Meeting of the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 

held at the Town Hall, Peterborough on Thursday, 9 July 2015

RECORD OF DECISION

1. Apologies for Absence There were no apologies for absence received.

2. Declarations of Interest There were no declarations of interest.

3. Application Review of Premises Licence – Baltia Off Licence - 148/150 Huntly Grove, 
Peterborough, PE1 2QN

3.1 Application Reference MAU 071435

3.2 Sub-Committee Members Councillor Thacker MBE (Chairman)
Councillor Coles
Councillor Herdman

3.3 Officers Darren Dolby , Regulatory Officer – Licensing
Colin Miles, Lawyer – Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee
Karen S Dunleavy, Democratic Services Officer – Clerk to the Sub-
Committee 

3.4 Applicant Cambridgeshire Constabulary

3.5 Nature of Application Application Type

Review of Premises License. 

Summary of Review Application

In accordance with section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, following the 
submission of an application to review the premises licence from 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary, a Responsible Authority, the licensing 
authority was required to hold a hearing.

The application to review, served by Constabulary, was received on 20 
March 2015.

A representation in support of the review and recommendations had been 
received from Trading Standards, as Responsible Authorities. No other 
representations had been received from any of the remaining Responsible 
Authorities.

A summary of the issues raised within the representations included:

 Illicit tobacco and cigarettes found hidden in the premises.
 The DPS had a premises licence application for another premises 

refused by the Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee in September 
2013. This was after a representation from Trading Standards after 

19



seizures of illicit alcohol and cigarettes and the premises.
 Section 11.28 of Guidance (issued under section 182 of the Licensing 

Act 2003) recommends that revocation of the licence even in the first 
instance, should be seriously considered where reviews arise and the 
licensing authority determines, that the crime prevention objective is 
being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes. 

 Impact on Public Safety as the illicit cigarettes breach EU Standards 
which is an offence under UK regulations requiring traders to supply 
safe goods.

 The distribution and sale of illicit goods is linked to serious and 
organised crime

Further representations from the Eastern Neighbourhood Delivery Team. A 
summary of the issues raised included:

 Breach of the Crime and disorder objective.

3.6 Licensing Objective(s) 
under which 
representations were 
made

3.7 1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

3.7 Parties/Representatives 
and witnesses present

Applicant / Responsible Authority

Grahame Robinson, who presented the case on behalf of Cambridgeshire 
Constabulary

Responsible Authorities

Karen Woods, who was present on behalf of Trading Standards.

Licensee / Representative

Ian Jones, the Licence Holder’s Representative was in attendance. 

3.8 Pre-hearing considerations 
and any decisions taken by 
the Sub-Committee relating 
to ancillary matters

There were no pre-hearing considerations.

20



3.9   Oral representations The Regulatory Officer addressed the Sub-Committee and outlined the main 
points with regards to the application.

Applicant / Responsible Authority– Cambridgeshire Constabulary

Grahame Robinson addressed the Sub-Committee. The key points raised 
during his address, and following questions from the Sub-Committee were as 
follows:

 There were suspicions that the licensee had connections with 
Euroshop, this could not be confirmed as there was no evidence. 

 Although the tobacco and molasses were a flavoured product they 
were still required to be duty paid, this was the reason for 
confiscation.

 The issue was with the counterfeit illicit items and suspicions that the 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was not fit and proper to sell 
alcohol at the premises in question. 

 Depending on the outcome of the review, there would be a pending 
application made to transfer the license in to the sole name of the 
DPS with some safeguards attached to reassure the police of proper 
conduct.

 The police would make suitable representation against any further 
application made by the DPS.

Licensee 

Ian Jones, addressed the Sub-Committee. The key points raised during his 
address, and following questions from the Sub-Committee, were as follows:

 The items found inside the premises were for personal use not sale. 
 The bottles of alcohol found in the freezer were for the use at Mr 

Jabar’s birthday party, which was going to take place on the evening 
of the raid. This was evidenced with a copy of Mr Jabar’s driving 
license.

 The DPS had no involvement in the possession of the illicit goods and 
felt that this was a matter of great concern as she made a living from 
the premises. 

 The DPS was prepared to ban Mr Jabar from having access to the 
premises during and outside of operational hours and understood that 
if items were to come on to the premises without her knowledge or 
involvement there would be harsh consequences. She was also 
aware that responsible authorities would be keeping a close eye on 
the premises if she was allowed to retain her license.  

 The quantities of illicit goods found on the property were relatively 
small and consistent with personal use.

 The DPS was no longer emotionally associated with Mr Jabar. 
 Could the Sub-Committee consider that as there was no evidence 

that the DPS was not involved directly with the presence of 
contraband items in the premises and be invited to listen what the 
DPS was now prepared to action to ensure that the license did not 
have to be revoked, including extra conditions imposed on the license 
or to suspend the license for a period of time.

 The DPS would be able to take on the premises license, without any 
involvement of Mr Jabar and be personally responsible to ensure 

21



there was no involvement with contraband goods in future.
 A copy of Mr Jabar’s driving license and an authority document was 

circulated round the Sub-Committee. 
 Grahame Robinson addressed the Committee and advised that the 

premises was located in the Can Do area. 
 Mr Jabar and Mr Jabari were brothers.
 Mrs Siatkiene had previously applied for a premises license for the 

Euroshop, which was strongly objected. 
 There had not been any requests made by any person connected to 

the premises for the seized goods to be returned by HMRC.
 The DPS was not responsible for the conduct of alcohol on the first 

occasion when the license was reviewed, as she was the owner of 
the premises and not the premises license holder. She was in a joint 
venture at the time with Mr Jabar. Now that she was no longer 
associated with Mr Jabar, it would be desirable for Mrs Siatkiene to 
take over the running of the premises and remove Mr Jabar from 
having any involvement with the premises, as she had a personal 
license. 

Summing Up

All parties were given the opportunity to summarise their submissions and 
there were no further comments made by any party. 

3.10   Written representations  
and    supplementary 
material taken into 
consideration 

Applicant / Responsible Authority – Cambridgeshire Constabulary

Consideration was given to the application submitted by Cambridgeshire 
Constabulary and attached to the Sub-Committee report. 

Responsible Authorities

Consideration was given to the written submissions attached to the Sub-
Committee report from Trading Standards a Responsible Authority.

Other Persons

Consideration was given to the written submissions attached to the Sub-
Committee report from Eastern Neighbourhood Delivery Team.

3.11   Facts/Issues in dispute Issue 1

Whether the review application would further support the ‘Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder’ Licensing Objective.

22



3.11   4. Decision The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence put before it and also 
took into account the contents of the application and all 
representations and submissions made in relation to it.  The Sub-
Committee found as follows:-

The Committee considered the representations made today in relation to the 
application.  A summary of the issues raised included:

 Illicit tobacco and cigarettes found hidden in the premises;
 The DPS had a Premises Licence application for another premises 

refused by the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee in September 
2013. This was after a representation from Trading Standards after 
seizures of illicit alcohol and cigarettes on the premises;

 Section 11.28 of Guidance (issued under section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003) recommends that revocation of the licence even in the first 
instance, should be seriously considered where reviews arise and the 
licensing authority determines, that the crime prevention objective is 
being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes; 

 Impact on Public Safety as the illicit cigarettes breach EU Standards 
which is an offence under UK regulations requiring traders to supply 
safe goods; and

 The distribution and sale of illicit goods is linked to serious and 
organised crime.

The Sub-Committee considered such steps as appropriate to promote the 
licensing objective, of the prevention of crime and disorder.  The steps were:

 to modify the conditions of the Premises Licence;
 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
 to remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence;
 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; or 
 to revoke the licence.

The Sub-Committee acknowledged that this review was for a different 
premises and that Mr Saade Jalal Jabar was not the Premises Licence 
holder or the designated premises supervisor, but the Sub Committee did 
believe that he was a controlling influence on the business and took into 
account his association with the premises.

The Sub-Committee cast doubt on the true motives behind the licence 
transfer in March of this year and believed that it was not for legitimate 
business reasons.

The Sub-Committee believed that the business was being operated by the 
DPS and Mr Saade Jalal Jabar without any responsibilities under the 
Licensing Act resting on Mr Marwan Jalal Jabari

The transfer of the licence and the lack of accountability demonstrated that 
these premises went against the spirit of the Licensing Act and was a 
manipulation designed to promote dishonesty and criminal activity.

The Government guidance stated that 11.26 Where the licensing authority is 
conducting a review on the grounds that the premises have been used for 
criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should be taken 

23



in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime 
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity 
or associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the 
best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and 
despite full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such 
circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take any 
appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to 
take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in the 
interests of the wider community and not those of the individual licence 
holder. 

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. This 
includes: for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco
11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law 
enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review 
procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise 
and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is 
being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is 
expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should 
be seriously considered.

The Sub-Committee attached little credibility to the submissions made by 
Counsel on behalf of his client.

The Sub-Committee believed that the DPS should have acted with greater 
responsibility given her previous history associated with illicit goods. The 
Sub-Committee believed that the controlling mind behind the business was in 
fact Mr Saade Jalal Jabar and that Mr Marwan Jalal Jabari, brother to Mr 
Saade Jalal Jabar, had no control or influence whatsoever in the running of 
the business.

The Sub-Committee considered removing the DPS from the premises, to 
suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months and to amend 
the conditions.

The Sub-Committee did not believe that any step other than revocation 
would be sufficient to promote the licensing objective of the prevention of 
crime and disorder. 

The Sub-Committee therefore revoked the licence for the premises, known 
as Baltia Off Licence - 148/150 Huntly Grove, Peterborough, PE1 2QN, in its 
entirety.

The Sub-Committee advised that any party in objection to the decision could 
appeal to the Peterborough Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving the 
formal decision notice.

Chairman
Start 1.30pm – Finish 3.11pm

24



LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM No. 4

3 SEPTEMBER 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor North, Cabinet Member for Communities and 
Environment Capital

Contact Officer(s): Regulatory Officer Ian Robinson
Public Protection Manager Donna Hall

Tel. 453541 
Tel. 453502

APPEAL AGAINST REFUSAL OF STREET TRADING CONSENT

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Licensing Department 
              Regulatory Officer Ian Robinson

Deadline date : N/A

Members are asked to consider and determine an appeal from Ms Malayeka Sultan against the 
refusal of a street trading consent for 5 Field Walk, Peterborough.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 This report is submitted to the Licensing Committee following a request from Ms Malayeka 
Sultan  to appeal the Licensing Department’s decision to refuse to grant street trading 
consent for a Fruit and Vegetable Stall at the rear of 5 Field Walk.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 The purpose of this report is to enable the Committee to consider the original Licensing 
Department’s decision in line with Ms Malayeka Sultan’s appeal and decide if consent 
should be granted. 

2.2 This report is for the Licensing Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 
4.2.1.3 and 2.4.4.3, ‘Licensing Market and Street Trading’.

3. TIMESCALE 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting

N/A

4. HISTORY

4.1 Field Walk backs onto the Wellington Street Car Park, where a car boot sale is held every 
Sunday. Reports were received by the Licensing Department concerning two residents in 
Field Walk offering goods for sale to the public every weekend. The residents were clearly 
capitalising on the nearby boot sale trade.

4.2 A number of complaints were subsequently received from Mr Tony D’Alessio - the Manager 
of the legitimate Car Boot Sale, a local resident and Parking Services concerning issues 
surrounding these two addresses. Parking Services have had to divert resources to the 
area and a number of fixed penalty tickets were issued.

4.3 Investigating officers identified two addresses that were involved in unlicensed street 
trading in Field Walk, one of which was No.5 Field Walk. Ms Sultan was selling fruit and 
vegetables from a stall at the rear of the location, whilst the occupant of 9 Field Walk was 

25



selling a wide range of second hand household items, including electrical equipment. Ms 
Sultan is not a resident of Field Walk and was trading at the rear of a family friend’s 
address. Both addresses were clearly trading.

4.4 Both unlicensed traders were advised they could not legally sell items to the public without 
first being in possession of the necessary legal consent and permissions.

4.5 Ms Sultan submitted an application to be granted a street trading consent on the 26th May 
2015. Following a consultation, her application was refused by Public Protection Manager 
Donna Hall. 

4.6 Following refusal of consent to trade outside 5 Field Walk, Ms Sultan submitted an appeal. 
Although in law there is no right of appeal following refusal, the council previously resolved 
to give those refused, a right of appeal through Licensing Committee.

4.7 Ms Sultan (the Appellant) and Mr Ahmed (9 Field Walk) have supplied a number of 
supporting letters, including a petition of 48 signatures (Appendix C). The petition requires 
the signatory to sign that they have not complained of any noise or parking issues 
pertaining to Ms Sultan trading at the location, however it is worthy of note that only six of 
the signatories reside in Field Walk, the bulk live nowhere near and it is believed that they 
would not be in a position to genuinely comment on how it affects the life of the local 
residents. 

4.8 Checks also indicate that Ms Sultan has not registered as a food business with the council. 
Registration of premises used for food businesses (including market stalls) is required by 
law. See e-mail from Regulatory Officer Nichola Russell (Appendix B). All businesses 
should be registered at least 28 days before they start trading.

4.9 For the purposes of registration the term ‘food’ means any substance or product intended to 
be or reasonably expected to be ingested by people. If you run a food business you must 
inform the local authority about any premises you use for storing, selling, distributing or 
preparing food.

4.10 Checks with the council’s Planning Department also indicate that no attempt has been 
made to seek planning permission, despite contact with Planning Enforcement. See e-mail 
from Planning Compliance Officer Tony Whittle (Appendix B).

  
4.11 Members are asked to consider and determine an appeal from Ms Sultan against the 

refusal of a street trading consent for Field Walk, Peterborough, taking into account the 
following:

 Initial application from Mrs Malayeka Sultan re the Fruit and Veg stall at the rear of 5 
Field Walk. (Includes comments from Regulatory Officer Ian Robinson and Public 
Protection Manager Donna Hall.) Appendix A.

 Initial application from Mr Ishfaq Ahmed. Appendix A.
 Representation received from Tony D’Alessio – Wellington Street Car Boot Sale 

Manager. Appendix B.
 Notifications from Regulatory Officer Nichola Russell re failure to register as a food 

business and Compliance Officer Tony Whittle re failure to apply for the necessary 
planning permission. Appendix B.

 Representations received from Darren Bell, Parking Operations Manager and Justin 
Beaumont, City Officer. Appendix B.

 Letters of support and petition for both traders. Appendix C.
 Service Request from Field Walk resident complaining re the activities at both 

addresses. Appendix D.
 Photograph showing the trading at 5 and 9 Field Walk. Appendix E.
 Letters refusing consent to trade from the Field Walk addresses. Appendix F.

26



Issues raised include:

 Illegal parking
 Noise / disturbance
 Obstruction of the highway, causing issues for other motorists and forcing members of 

the public to walk on the road to negotiate the obstruction caused by the two traders.
 Failure to register as a food business and therefore failing to allow the Food Safety 

Team to inspect food storage and handling processes to ensure public safety.
 Approval may set a precedent, allowing other local residents to trade from their home 

addresses, affecting the look of the area and causing similar issues elsewhere.

5. SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5.1 On 19 March 2001, in a review document, the Environment Committee resolved that all 
streets in Peterborough be designated for the purpose of street trading as consented 
streets. 

5.2 The Public Protection Manager Donna Hall and the Head of Regulatory Services Peter Gell 
have delegated authority to designate consented streets in Peterborough in the absence of 
objections. This is to account for future growth in the City. In addition the named officers 
have delegated authority to issue, amend, revoke or refuse street trading consents, other 
than in the City Centre Pedestrian Area (the latter being delegated to the Head of Transport 
and Engineering).

5.3 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (The Act) (Paragraph 7 (2) of 
schedule 4) states that the Council may grant a consent ‘if they see fit’.

 
5.4      There is no statutory procedure outlining how the Authority is to notify the applicant of any 

objections, however, the applicant must be notified of the substance of any objections to 
the granting of consent, and given an opportunity to respond to those objections. 

5.5 The Act does not give a statutory right of appeal in respect of the refusal, revocation or 
variation of a street trading consent, though the Committee resolved to give those whose 
applications for street trading consents that were refused, a right of appeal to the Licensing 
Committee. 

6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

In order to trade legally, Ms Sultan can simply pay for a pitch on the legitimate car boot 
sale in Wellington Street, or at any other of the city’s legitimate Markets or Car Boot Sales. 
These alternatives have been suggested to the appellant in a bid to assist. 

7. IMPLICATIONS

7.1 Community Implications

Street trading significantly impacts upon Peterborough in terms of the services provided, 
employment opportunities, and the look and feel of the City. It also has an impact on the 
local environment with issues such as litter, noise, illegal parking and competition to local 
businesses.
It is believed that granting a street trading consent from domestic addresses would set a 
dangerous precedent, impacting on the quality of life of local residents. The issues already 
reported, surrounding the two traders in Field Walk appear to corroborate this.
Whilst we must bear the rights of the appellant in mind i.e. the peaceful enjoyment of 
possessions, it must also be balanced against the rights of local residents i.e. their right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions and also respect for their private and family life.

7.2 Cross-Service Implications

27



The illegal trading at the location has increased the drain on council resources. Parking 
Services have had to divert their Civil Enforcement Officers to address issues at the 
location. In addition, Justin Beaumont, the City Officer responsible for Markets and 
Planning Enforcement Officers have also had to attend the location to assess the problem. 

7.3 Legal

Guidance has been sought from the Legal Section on the compilation of this report. 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
 
Parts 3 and 4 of Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

28



APPENDIX A

29

aal499
Text Box

aal499_1
Text Box



APPENDIX A

30



APPENDIX A

31

aal499_2
Text Box



APPENDIX A

32



APPENDIX A

33



APPENDIX A

34



APPENDIX A

35



APPENDIX A

36



APPENDIX A

37



APPENDIX A

38

aal499_3
Text Box



APPENDIX B

39



APPENDIX B

40



APPENDIX B

41



APPENDIX B

42



APPENDIX B

43



APPENDIX B

44



APPENDIX B

45



APPENDIX B

46



APPENDIX C

47



APPENDIX C

48

aal499_4
Text Box



APPENDIX C

49

aal499_5
Text Box



APPENDIX C

50

aal499_6
Text Box



APPENDIX C

51

aal499_7
Text Box



APPENDIX C

52

aal499_8
Text Box



APPENDIX C

53

aal499_9
Text Box



APPENDIX C

54

aal499_10
Text Box



APPENDIX C

55

aal499_11
Text Box



APPENDIX C

56

aal499_12
Text Box

aal499_13
Text Box



APPENDIX C

57

aal499_14
Text Box



APPENDIX C

58

aal499_15
Text Box



APPENDIX C

59

aal499_16
Text Box



This page is intentionally left blank

60



APPENDIX D

61



APPENDIX D

62



APPENDIX D

63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



APPENDIX E

APPENDIX E - PHOTOGRAPHS

65



APPENDIX E

66



APPENDIX F

67



APPENDIX F

68



APPENDIX F

69



This page is intentionally left blank

70


	Agenda
	3.1 18 June 2015
	3.2 Minutes of the Sub-Committee Hearings Held Between June 2015 and July 2015
	Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee Minutes - Baltia

	4 Field Walk Appeal
	Field Walk - APPENDIX A
	Field Walk - APPENDIX B
	Field Walk - APPENDIX C
	Field Walk - APPENDIX D
	Field Walk - APPENDIX E
	Field Walk - APPENDIX F




